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Plaintiff Amanda Obney, by and through her attorneys, brings this action
on behalf of herself, all others similarly situated and the general public against
defendant Taco Bell Corporation (“Taco Bell” or “Defendant”). The Court has
jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. -§ 1332(d)(2). Plaintiff alleges,
on information and belief, except for the information based on personal
knowledge, as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a consumer rights class action challenging Taco Bell’s
practice of representing to consumers that the filling in many of its “beef” food
items is “seasoned ground beef” or “seasoned beef,” when in fact a substantial
amount of the filling contains substances other than beef. Rather than beef, these
food items are actually made with a substance known as “taco meat filling.” Taco
meat filling mostly consists of “extenders” and other non-meat substances. Taco
meat filling is not beef. In fact, it does not meet the minimum standards set by
the United States Department of Agriculture (“USDA”) to be labeled or
advertised as “beef,” seasoned or otherwise. This action seeks to require Taco
Bell to properly advertise and label these food items and to engage in a corrective
advertising campaign to educate the public about the true content of its food
Products (defined below).

2. Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure 23(a) and (b)(2) on behalf of herself, all similarly situated consumers
of the menu items advertised and labeled by defendant as containing “seasoned
ground beef” or “scasoned beef” and the general public. Plaintiff seeks to halt
the dissemination of Taco Bell’s false and misleading advertising message, and
correct the false and misleading perception it has created in the minds of

consSumers.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has original jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§1332(d)(2). The matter in controversy, exclusive of interest and costs, exceeds
the sum or value of $5,000,000 and is a class action in which members of the
Class of plaintiffs are citizens of states different from Taco Bell. Further, greater
than two-thirds of the Class members reside in states other than the state in
which Taco Bell is a citizen.

4. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391 in that
many of the acts and transactions giving rise to this action occurred in this
district and because Taco Bell:

(@) is headquartered within the Southern Division of this district;
(b) is authorized to conduct business in this district and has
intentionally availed itself of the laws and markets within this district through the
promotion, marketing, distribution and sale of its products in this district;
(c)  does substantial business in this district; and
(d) is subject to personal jurisdiction in this district.
PARTIES

5. Plaintiff is a resident of California. During the relevant time period
plaintiff was exposed in California to defendant’s advertising and labeling claims
that the subject “beef” food items were filled with “seasoned ground beef” or
“seasoned beef.” Based on these representations, as well as the reasonable belief
that defendant would accurately and honestly describe its products, plaintiff
believed the taco meat filling was seasoned beef and, in reliance thereon,
purchased the food items, thereby suffering injury in fact and losing money as a
result of the alleged conduct. Plaintiff wanted to purchase beef-filled food items
from Taco Bell, but did not receive what she believed she was purchasing.

6.  Defendant Taco Bell Corporation is a California company with its
principal place of business in Irvine, California. Taco Bell Corporation, a wholly

2
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owned subsidiary of Yum! Brands, Inc., is the largest Mexican fast-food chain in
the United States. It operates, manages or franchises more than 5,600 locations
in the United States and had sales in 2009 in excess of $1.9 billion. More than
35 million consumers visit a Taco Bell restaurant each week and more than two
billion consumers are served annually. From its headquarters and Restaurant
Support Center in California, Taco Bell determines the content of its advertising
and labeling, including its menus.
DEFENDANT’S CONDUCT

7. Taco Bell operates, manages, markets, and franchises fast-food
restaurants in California and throughout the United States.

8. Taco Bell restaurants serve Mexican style food products, including,
but not limited to, tacos, burritos, Gorditas®, Chalupas® and quesadillas.
Consumers are generally given a choice between chicken, beef, or carne asada
steak. The “chicken” and “carne asada steak” served by Taco Bell is, in fact,
chicken or carne asada steak. The “seasoned beef,” however, is not beef.

9. Taco Bell advertises and labels many of its “beef” food items to
consumers as containing “seasoned ground beef’ or “seasoned beef” (the
“Products™). In reality, a substantial majority of the filling is comprised of
substances other than beef, and is required to be labeled and advertised as “taco
meat filling.”

10.  Taco Bell also misrepresents certain of the Products’ ingredients as
“seasonings.” However, these ingredients are not added for flavor, but rather to
increase the volume of the product. These ingredients are binders and extenders
such as “isolated oat product.”

11. Taco Bell uniformly misrepresents on its package labels, brochures,
website, menus, and in its television commercials that the “beef’ Products

contain “seasoned ground beef,” rather than “taco meat filling.”
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12, For example, Taco Bell describes its diet product, “Fresco Soft
Taco,” as “a warm, soft flour tortilla filled with seasoned ground beef, crisp
shredded lettuce, and fiesta salsa.” It describes its Crunchy Taco as “a crunchy,
corn taco shell filled with seasoned ground beef, crisp shredded lettuce, and real
cheddar cheese.” It describes its spicy beef “Volcano® Burrito as “a warm, soft
flour tortilla that’s packed with a double portion* of seasoned ground beef,
seasoned rice, crunchy red tortilla strips, real cheddar cheese, cool reduced fat
sour cream and cheesy molten hot lava sauce.” In fact, for each of these food
items and its other Products, the “seasoned ground beef” is not ground beef with
T seasoning but “taco meat filling.”

13.  On its website, www.tacobell.com, Taco Bell repeats these

misrepresentations and omissions and the contents of its advertisements:

CRUNCHY TACO

> SEE WHATS INSIDE

A crunchy, com tace shell filled with seasoned
ground beel, ensp shredded lefiuce, and real

cheddar cheose.
» Nutntion Facts P Nutrition Calculator

P Explore Why Pay Morel@

PRIR WITH A
CHICKEN GRILLED
STUFT BURRITO




[y

BEEFY CRUNCH

: BURRITO
3
> SEE WHAT'S INSIDE
4
5 Layers of seasoned ground beol, nee, warm
nacho cheese sauce, reduced lal DrREm
6 and Flamin’ Hol (R} Fritos{i) wrapped in a
warnm, llour toilla.
7 S g )
Nutrtion Facts P Rutrition Cakulator
8
9
10
% 11
-l
& 12
2
S 13
14
O 14
o3
'_
g 15 FRESCO SOFT
2 TACO
T 16
(o]
9 17 > SEE WHAT'S INSIDE
m
18 ~
A warm, sofl llour torilla filled with seasor
19 ground beel, ensp stieddod lelluce, ang
fiesta salsa
20 } Nutrition Facts P Nutrition Calculator
21 P Explore Drive Thru Diets
22
23
24
25
26 - L] - 3
14.  Taco Bell’s television commercials, restaurant menus and print
27
advertisements make the false and deceptive misrepresentations and omissions
28
00025525 5
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that the “beef” Products contain “seasoned ground beef,” and not a product of

substantially lower quality that does not meet the definition for beef. For

example:

15. Taco Bell’s advertisement that it sells “beef” menu items containing
“seasoned ground beef,” is unsubstantiated, false and misleading. The Products,
unbeknownst to consumers, are comprised substantially of meat filling and are
mislabeled. Taco Bell’s “seasoned beef” actually contains among other
ingredients, water, “Isolated Oat Product,” wheat oats, soy lecithin,
maltodrextrin, anti-dusting agent, autolyzed yeast extract, modified corn starch
and sodium phosphate, as well as beef and seasonings.

16. Taco Bell’s definition of “seasoned beef’ does not conform to
consumers’ reasonable expectation or ordinary meaning of seasoned beef, which
is beef and seasonings. Merriam-Webster defines “beef” as “the flesh of an adult

domestic bovine (as steer or cow) used as food.”
6
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17.  Taco Bell’s use of the term “seasoned beef’ also violates and is
otherwise inconsistent with the United States Department of Agriculture’s
(“USDA?”) definition. The USDA defines “beef” as “flesh of cattle.” 7 C.F.R.
§1260.119. “Ground beef” “shall consist of chopped fresh and/or frozen beef
with or without seasoning and without the addition of beef fat as such, shall not
contain more than 30 percent fat, and shall not contain added water, phosphates,
binders, or extenders.” 9 C.F.R. §319.15.

18.  The USDA has developed the Food Standards and Labeling Policy
Book (the “Policy Book”). The Policy Book provides “guidance to help
manufacturers and prepare product labels that are truthful and not misleading.”
The Policy Book requires food labeled as “Taco filling” to contain “at least 40
percent fresh meat.” In addition, “[t]he label must show the true product name,
e.g., ‘Taco Filing with Meat,” ‘Beef Taco Filling,” or ‘Taco Meat Filling.””

19. Internally, Taco Bell refers to its “seasoned ground beef’ and
“seasoned beef” as “taco meat filling,” even labeling the containers shipped to its

restaurants correctly, while not telling its customers. The label reads:
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

20.  Plaintiff brings this lawsuit on behalf of herself and the proposed
Class members under Federal Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 23(a) and (b)(2).
The proposed Class consists of:

All persons in the United States who purchased any food product

from Taco Bell that was advertised or labeled as a containing

“beef,” “seasoned ground beef” or “seasoned beef.”

21. The Class is comprised of many tens of thousands of consumers
throughout California and the United States. The Class is so numerous that
joinder of all members of the Class is impractical.

22.  This action involves questions of law and fact common to the

plaintiff and the members of the Class which include:
8
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(@ Whether Taco Bell has engaged in an unlawful, unfair,
misleading or deceptive business act or practice through their labeling and
advertising practices;

(b) Whether Taco Bell’s labeling and advertising is misleading
and/or likely to deceive regarding the nature of the Products;

(c)  Whether the Taco Bell Products contain beef with a seasoning
or taco meat filling;

(d)  Whether Taco Bell’s alleged conduct violates public policy;
and

() Whether plaintiff and Class members are entitled to
declaratory and injunctive relief, including enjoining Taco Bell from continuing
to misrepresent the nature of the Products, and requiring Taco Bell to engage in a
corrective advertising campaign.

23. The plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the
Class. The named plaintiff is a member of the Class of victims described herein.

24.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class
and has no interests adverse to or which conflict with the interests of the other
members of the Class. Plaintiff has engaged counsel who are experienced in the
prosecution of this type of action.

25. Unless a class-wide injunction is issued, Taco Bell will continue to
commit the violations alleged, and the members of the Class and the general
public will continue to be misled.

26.  Taco Bell has acted or refused to act on grounds that apply generally
to the Class so that final injunctive relief and corresponding declaratory relief is

appropriate respecting the Class as a whole.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Consumers Legal Remedies Act
Civil Code §1750 et seq.

27.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations
contained in the paragraphs above as if fully set forth herein.

28. This cause of action is brought pursuant to the Consumers Legal
Remedies Act, Civil Code §1750, et seq. (the “Act”). Plaintiff is a consumer as
defined by Civil Code §1761(d). The Products are goods within the meaning of
the Act.

29.  Taco Bell violated and continues to violate the Act by engaging in
the following practices proscribed by §1770(a) of the Act in transactions with
plaintiff and the Class which were intended to result in, and did result in, the sale
of the Products:

(a) Representing that [the Products have]. ..
characteristics, . .. uses [or] benefits ... which [it does] not

have....

(b) Representing that [the Products are] of a
particular standard, quality or grade . . . if [they are] of another.
(c)  Advertising goods . . . with intent not to sell

them as advertised.

30. Taco Bell violated the Act by making the representations described
above when it knew, or should have known, that the representations were
unsubstantiated, false and misleading,.

31.  Pursuant to §1782(d) of the Act, plaintiff and the Class seek a Court
order enjoining the above-described wrongful acts and practices of Taco Bell,
and for corrective advertising.

32. Pursuant to §1780(d) of the Act, attached hereto as Exhibit A is the
affidavit showing that this action has been commenced in the proper forum.

10




BLOOD HURST & O’REARDON, LLP

00025525

O 00 9 N 1 R W) e

I\JMNI\JNI\JNNN—-H;—H—_—-F——-H
OO\]O\MAUJN'—‘O\OOO\]O\MAUJNP—‘O

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Unlawful Business Acts and Practices,
Business & Professions Code §17200, et seq.

33. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations contained in the
paragraphs above, as if fully set forth herein.

34. Business & Professions Code §17200 prohibits any “unlawful,
unfair or fraudulent business act or practice and unfair, deceptive, untrue or
misleading advertising.” For the reasons discussed above, Taco Bell has violated
each of these provisions of Business & Professions Code §17200.

35.  Taco Bell has violated §17200’s prohibition against engaging in
unlawful acts and practices by, inter alia, making the representations and
omissions of material facts, as set forth more fully herein, and violating Civil
Code §§1572, 1573, 1709, 1710, 1711, 1770; Business & Professions Code
§17500 et seq.; Health & Safety Code §§110390, 110395, 110398, 110545,
110585, 110660, 110760, 110765; 21 U.S.C. §§342, 343; 7 CF.R. §1260.119;
and 9 C.F.R. §319.15, by misbranding food in violation of federal law, and by
violating the common law.

36.  Plaintiff and the Class reserve the right to allege other violations of
law which constitute other unlawful business acts or practices. Such conduct is
ongoing and continues to this date.

37.  Taco Bell’s acts, omissions, misrepresentations, practices and non-
disclosures that the Products contained “seasoned ground beef” or “seasoned
beef” rather than “taco meat filling,” as alleged herein, also constitute “unfair”
business acts and practices within the meaning of Business & Professions Code
§17200, et seq., in that its conduct is substantially injurious to consumers,
offends public policy, and is immoral, unethical, oppressive, and unscrupulous as
the gravity of the conduct outweighs any alleged benefits attributable to such
conduct.

11
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38.  As stated in this Complaint, plaintiff alleges violations of consumer
protection, unfair competition and truth in advertising laws. Plaintiff asserts
violations of the public policy of engaging in false and misleading advertising,
unfair competition and deceptive conduct towards consumers. This conduct
constitutes violations of the unfair prong of Business & Professions Code
§17200, et seq.

39. There were reasonably available alternatives to further Taco Bell’s
legitimate business interests, other than the conduct described herein.

40. The foregoing conduct also violates Business & Professions Code
§17200°s prohibition against “fraudulent” or deceptive business practices.
Defendant’s misrepresentations on its labels, brochures, website, menus,
packaging and in television and internet advertisements that the Products are
“beef,” and contain “seasoned ground beef” or “seasoned beef,” are likely to and
did deceive reasonable consumers, including the plaintiff, into believing the
Products had specific ingredients which they did not.

41.  Taco Bell’s advertising, including its labeling, as described herein,
also constitutes unfair, deceptive, untrue and misleading advertising.

42.  Taco Bell’s conduct caused and continues to cause substantial injury
to plaintiff and the other Class members. Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and
has lost money or property as a result of Taco Bell’s unfair conduct.

43.  As aresult of Taco Bell’s violations of the UCL, and similar laws in
effect in other states, plaintiff and Class members are entitled to the relief against
defendant, as set forth in the Prayer for Relief.

44.  Additionally, pursuant to Business & Professions Code §17203,
plaintiff seeks an order requiring Taco Bell to immediately cease such acts of
unlawful, unfair and fraudulent business practices, and requiring Taco Bell to
engage in a corrective advertising campaign, including notification of the true
content and ingredients of Taco Bell’s Products.

12
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, plaintiff prays for a judgment:

A.  Certifying the Class as a class action;

B.  Awarding declaratory and injunctive relief, including enjoining
defendant from continuing the unlawful practices as set forth herein, and
continuing to misrepresent the true contents and ingredients of their Products;

C.  Directing defendant to engage in a corrective advertising campaign;

D.  Awarding plaintiff attorneys’ fees and costs; and

E.  Awarding such further relief as may be just and proper.

JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable.
Dated: January 19, 2011 BLOOD HURST & O’REARDON, LLP

TIMOTHY G. BLOOD
LESLIE E. HURST
THOMAS J. O'REARDON II

Al

TIMOTHY G. BLOOD

600 B Street, Suite 1550
San Diego, CA 92101
Telephone: (619) 338-1100
Facsimile: (619)338-1101
tbloodgj%bholaw.com

lhurst@bholaw.com
toreardon@bholaw.com

BEASLEY, ALLEN, CROW, MEHVIN,
PORTIS & MILES, P.C.
W. DANIEL MILES, IiI
WILLIAM E. HOPKINS, JR.
218 Commerce Street
Post Office Box 4160
Mont%omerg, AL 36104
Telephone: 334/269-2343
334/954-7555 (fax)
Dee.Miles@BeasleyAllen.com
Bill. Hopkins@BeasleyAllen.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

13
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL COVER SHEET

VIii(a). IDENTICAL CASES: Has this action been previously filed in this court and dismissed, remanded or closed? IfNo O Yes
If yes, list case number(s):

ViI(b). RELATED CASES: Have any cases been previously filed in this court that are related to the present case? I!{No O Yes
If yes, list case numnber(s):

Civil cases are deemed related if a previously filed case and the present case:
(Check all boxes that apply) [ A. Arise from the same or closcly related transactions, happenings, or events; or
0O B. Call for determination of the same or substantially related or similar questions of law and fact; or
O C. For other reasons would entail substantial duplication of labor if heard by different judges; or
O D. Involve the same patent, trademark or copyright, and one of the factors identified above in a, b or ¢ also is present.

IX, VENUE: (When completing the following information, use an additional sheet if necessary.)

(a) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH named plaintiff resides.
O __ Check here if the government, its agencies or emplayees is o named plaintiff, If this box is checked, go to item (b).
County in this District:* California County outside of this District; State, if other than Califoria; or Foreign Country

San Diego

(b) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH named defendant resides.
O Check here if the govemment, its agencies or employees is a named defendant. If this box is checked, go to item (c).

County in this District:* California County outside of this District; State, if other than California; or Foreign Country

Irvine

(c) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH claim arose.
Note: In land condemnation cases, ase the location of the tract of land involved.

County in this District:* California County outside of this District; State, if other than California; or Foreign Country

Irvine

* Los Angeles, Orange, San Bernardino, Riverside, Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis Obispo Counties

Note: In land condemnation cases. use the location of the tract of landynvolved .
X. SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY (OR PRO PER): E /W—;Z/C‘ %L—-J Date 1/19/2011

~

Notice to Counsel/Parties: The CV-71(JS-44) Civil Cover Sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings
or other papers as required by law. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required pursuant to Local Rule 3-1 is not filed
but is used by the Clerk of the Court for the purpose of statistics, venue and initiating the civil docket sheet, (For more detailed instructions, see separate instructions sheet.)

Key to Statistical codes relating to Social Security Cases:

Nature of Suit Code  Abbreviation Substantive Statement of Cause of Action

861 HiA All claims for health insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act, as amended.
Also, include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, etc., for certification as providers of services under the
program. (42 U.S.C. 1935FF(b))

862 BL All claims for “Black Lung” benefits under Title 4, Part B, of the Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969.
(30 US.C. 923)

863 DIWC All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as
amended; plus all claims filed for child’s insurance benefits based on disability. (42 U.S.C. 405(g))

863 DIWW All claims filed for widows or widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security
Act, as amended. (42 U.S.C. 405(g))

864 SSID All claims for supplemental security income payments based upon disability filed under Title 16 of the Social Security
Act, as amended.

865 RSI All claims for retirement (old age) and survivors benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended. (42
U.S.C. (g)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY

This case has been assigned to District Judge David O. Carter and the assigned
discovery Magistrate Judge is Frederick F, Mumm.

The case number on all documents fited with the Court should read as follows:
S8ACV1l- 101 DOC (FPMx)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central
District of California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related
motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge
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NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendanis (if a removal action Is
flled, a copy of this nolice must be served on all plaintiffs).

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location:

Westarn Division [X] Southern Division L] Eastern Division
312 N. Spring 8t., Rm. G-8 411 West Fourth 8t., Rm. 1-053 3470 Twelfth St., Rm. 134
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Santa Ang, CA 927014516 Riverside, CA 92501

Fallure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being retumed to you.
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